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DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RESIDENTIAL CHILD CARE PROGRAMS
SSA/RCC-19-001-S
QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES #1
Question 1:
Does this RFP include Residential Treatment Facilities- not locked for children who have psychiatric issues derived from abuse and neglect?
Response:
This RFP does not include Residential Treatment Facilities.
Question 2:
In the attachments on E Marketplace, there are the budget forms and it states that we have to have signed LOI’s. Is this something that has to be submitted with the RFP because we do not generally turn in budgets until February and the LOI’s are not usually returned to us until January.
Response:
Signed LOIs are to be submitted with the Financial Proposal/Budget.  
Question 3:
When will the pre-bid conference be for this RFP? After today’s IRC meeting, it has come to our attention that we must have several budget forms completed and submitted to OLM by December 16th, as well as our entire RFP submission completed by December 19th. With the scope of work required and the tight turn around, we are eager to receive initial guidance from the conference.
Response:
The Pre-Proposal Conference will be held on December 5, 2019 from 10:30 am to 1:30 pm.  Please see Amendment 1.
Question 4:
I am writing to request that the pre-bid conference be scheduled as soon as possible hopefully no later than next week. There are several areas that need clarification and I alone have multiple questions that need to be answered prior to completing specifics of the RFP. Given the short turn around time we need as much time as possible to write because for some of us with multiple programs the RFP will require an inordinate amount of time. Additionally, we will be submitting a formal letter from MARFY but I would like to request that the deadline for the RFP be pushed back to at least January 15, 2020. The submission date is less than 2 months and coincides with numerous other state requirements being asked of providers.
Response:
The Pre-Proposal Conference will be held on December 5, 2019 from 10:30 am to 1:30 pm.  The closing date for Proposals is February 6, 2020 at 2:00 pm. Please see Amendments 1 and 2.
Question 5:

2.2.2 (Page 4)- It states that there were changes to the 




requirements for RCC as it relates to criminal background and CPS 


clearances. What are the changes?

Response:
Please refer to the link below for the Health and Human Services, Family First Guidance ACYF-CB-PI-18-07 (See RFP, page 5, 3rd bullet from the top).  https://www.acf.hhs.gov/sites/default/files/cb/pi1807.pdf
Question 6:

Page 7- It states that there will be a 12% increase in beds. Is that 



accurate? What does M/F mean?

Response:
The 601 beds sought in this solicitation are based on historical information and trends and are estimates only.    M/F means male or female.
Question 7:

2.3.2 D- (Page 9) In order to be a QRTP do you have to have a 



licensed nursing AND a clinical staff on site 24/7?  I am a 




community based program and have 5 group homes so do I need 5 


nurses and 5 clinical staff on site 24/7? If so that is upwards of 



$300,000 increase in my budget. 

Response:
A licensed nurse must be onsite or available 24/7.  Clinical staff must be available within their scope of practice.  It is not necessary that you have five nurses and five clinical staff on site 24/7, but you must meet the requirements of the Program.
Question 8:

2.3.2 F (Page 9) Ratio- It states that there are at least 2 staff 




persons present and on-duty in the facility at all times when a 



resident is present. The word a indicates 1 however the ratio states 



3:2 not 2:1. Does that mean if 1 youth is in the program there has to 


be 2 staff always?  How does this RFP override COMAR 




regulations regarding ratio?

Response: 
Yes, two staff persons are required to be present and on duty if there is one child present.  This requirement does not override or conflict with COMAR.  Ratios are determined by Levels of Care.  See Amendment 3.
Question 9:

2.3.2 F (Page 10)- It states that regardless of COMAR regulations 



regarding ratio the program has to have at least 2 staff present and 



on duty however on page 20 it states that GHP ratio is 4:1.  Please 



clarify ratios.

Response: 
The ratio for GHP is 4:1 resident to staff during waking hours and 8:1 resident to staff during sleeping hours.  However, there must be two staff persons present and on duty at the facility if there is one child.  
Question 10:

2.3.5(page 5)  It states to accept all referrals in accordance with our 


provider profile but states that we have to have a “no reject” policy. 



Please clarify. If this RFP requires a NO REJECT policy for all 



referrals, then we are not considering what is best for the youth and 


the program and can we reject if the youth does not fit our provider 



profile? 

Response:
Yes, a Contractor may reject the youth if he or she does not fit the Provider profile.
Question 11:

2.3.6 C (Page 11) - We have authority to move a youth internally if 



there is an “emergency”. What is the definition of an emergency?
Response:
In general, an emergency is a sudden or unexpected occurrence that could not have been reasonably foreseen and requires action to avoid or mitigate serious damage to public health, safety or welfare. 
Question 12:

2.3.9 (Page 12): It states that the contractor is responsible for 



transportation however on page 40 section 3.3.3 it states that travel 


will not be reimbursed under this RFP. Please clarify how providers 



are to be reimbursed for travel expense.

Response:
Travel expenses and cost must be included in the Provider’s budget.
Question 13:

2.3.15 Section B (1)(page 14): It states that the contractor will 



provide transportation for the child to the school of origin however 



COMAR 13A 05.09.04 states that “ Each local school system shall: 



(1) Promptly provide homeless students with transportation 




services comparable to the transportation services provided to non-



homeless students attend the school ..” COMAR additionally states 



in the same section (C) (1) The local school system of origin and 



the local school system in which the homeless child or youth is 



living shall agree upon a method to apportion the responsibility and 



costs for providing he child with transportation to and from the 



school or origin” so it appears this cost should not be passed 



through to the contractor. The RFP also states that the contractor 



shall: Expeditiously initiate and monitor the transfer of the academic 


records of a child in the Contractor’s care from the transferring 



school” however COMAR 13 A 05.09.05 E it states that if “If a 



homeless student has left a school without officially transferring and 


obtaining the student’s educational records: (1) The school where 



the student is seeking to enroll shall: (b) Immediately call the former 


school for transfer information and relevant academic and other 



records”.  Please clarify whose responsibility this is? 

Response:
Once a child is placed with the Provider, the Providers shall comply with Section 2.3.15 of the RFP and work with the  social workers to ensure that the educational needs of the child are met. 
Question 14:

2.3.21 QRTP (page 17) - If we are applying to be a QRTP is that a 



separate category or would it be for example a TFC and we state 



that we meet QRTP requirements? Is there a higher rate for 




QRTP? Does this RFP determine who is a QRTP or is that a 



separate entity? 

Response:
QRTP is not a separate Program under the RFP.  It is an accreditation.  The accrediting bodies are listed in Section 1.2.1.  
Question 15:

2.3.22.3 (page 20) It states for a GHP that we need to ensure 



availability and access to counseling and that the LOI for clinical is 



low which states that clinical services are provided on an outpatient 


basis in the community however COMAR 14.31.06.06 C states that 



the licensee shall employ human service professionals appropriate 



to the needs of the child and nature of the program and a human 



service per COMAR 14.03.06.03 (6 a-f) is a licensed professional 



(social work, psychologist, counselor, nurse, psychiatrist) so the 



LOI contradicts COMAR. Please clarify?

Response:
The LOI does not contradict COMAR. Please be reminded that the LOIs are minimum requirements and a Provider’s Program may have higher LOIs. A Provider may also hire one or more licensed professionals depending on the Provider’s profile.
Question 16:

For High Intensity it states that the LOI for Health and Medical 



Services has to be M which requires a contractual RN however this 



is not supported in the budget and not a COMAR regulation.
Response:
All cost for staff and services under this RFP must be included in the Provider’s Financial Proposal/Budget.
Question 17:

For TGH, the RFP states that the LOI for Health and Medical 



Services has to be M which requires an RN that can respond in 



person during the day and 24/7 by phone however COMAR 




10.21.07.10 A states that Physical and Dental examinations, care, 



and treatment for children who are: (1) Eligible for Medical 




Assistance, services through the managed care organization, as 



required by COMAR which indicates that services in the community 


are adequate for his level of care. Please clarify? Is the IRC going 



to support this cost as it is substantial?

Response:
Please note that COMAR 10.21.07.10A refers to DDA only.  Although a RN must be available, the RN is not a substitute for regular health care and services that can be obtained in the community.  All costs for staff and services under this RFP must be included in the Provider’s Financial Proposal/Budget 
Question 18:

2.3.23 (page 25) - Is this the reimplementation of the safety report 



that we did in previous years? 
Response:
The Performance Requirements include the COMAR safety report. 
Question 19:

I (Page 78) - Please clarify “clients”? Are all references from 




previous clients or can we also solicit references from community 



partners? 

Response:
References selected must be able to attest to the Offeror’s qualifications and capabilities to provide the services requested under the RFP.
Question 20:

Budget - We were instructed to submit our FY 20 rate letters with 



the RFP but submit actual cost in our February budget 




submissions. Our rate will need to increase to meet the new staffing 


requirements so please clarify that this should be included in the 



budget, not the RFP submission. 
Response:
For those Offerors who have an approved 2020 IRC rate letter, the Offeror shall submit the approved 2020 IRC rate letter to the Procurement Officer via mail as the Financial Proposal and submit the FY 21 Budget Application to the IRC.  Section 5.4.3

However, for those Offerors that do not have a rate letter, the Offeror shall submit the Budget Application directly to the Procurement Officer. See Section 5.4.5
Question 21:

I have a question in regards to the LOI’s and budget submission as 



it relates to the RFP. The RFP dictates the LOI levels for group 



home, High intensity and TGH which are different then our current 



LOI’s. For group homes, nothing significant has changed. For High 



intensity, the RFP states the Health and Medical has to be M which 



means you have to have a contractual nurse available although 



COMAR does not have this requirement. For TGH’s, Health and 



Medical is also stating that is has to be M which means that you 



have to have RN available 24/7 although COMAR 10.21.07.10 



contradicts this requirement. What takes precedent COMAR or the 



RFP? Is the IRC prepared to support the cost of the RFP 




requirements? This is a significant cost for community based 



programs so should we include this in the budget? Also, should we 



submit our LOI’s based on what the RFP is requiring or our current 



practice?  

Response:
See responses to Questions 16, 17 and 20.  LOIs shall be based upon the requirements in the RFP.
Question 22:

What is the State’s current capacity and usage in each of the 



program type categories and regions outlined in the RFP?
Response:
Please refer to the chart in Section 2.2.11, which provides the best estimation of the needs of the State based on the most current data available at the time the RFP was posted.

Question 23:

Is there a maximum contract capacity (per location) for High 




Intensity Group Homes?
Response:
Refer to the chart in Section 2.2.11 for the number of beds sought for High Intensity Group Homes.  An Offeror may not exceed it’s bed capacity under any Program.
Question 24:

Which providers have current high intensity group home contracts?
Response:
ARC of Washington County, Inc., Board of Child Care of the United Methodist Church, Inc., Brook Lane Health Services, Inc. , Cedar Ridge Children's Home and School, Inc., Children's Guild, Inc., Hearts and Homes for Youth, Inc., National Center for Children and Families, Inc. and Our House Youth Home, Inc.

Question 25:

The DETP requirements state “must serve male and female.” Can a 


vendor serve one gender at a location or must they serve both at 



the location? i.e. an all female DETP or all male DETP
Response:
The vendor can serve one gender at a location as described, e.g., all female DETP or all male DETP.  
Question 26:

If a provider proposes to reduce their current number of contracted 



beds, is that a rate modification as part of the IRC FY2021 budget 



process or a new program FY2020 IRC technical assistance budget 


process?
Response:
Any proposed capacity change would need to be discussed with the appropriate licensing and placement agencies.  The provider would develop the FY2021 budget application to reflect those capacity changes and explain those changes in the budget justification. A FY2020 rate modification would only be necessary if the changes take effect before June 30, 2020.
Question 27:

The Annual report form attachment with the RFP is dated for fiscal 



year ending June 30, 2020.  The RFP is due, December 19 2019.  



Should we send report for June 30, 2019?
Response:
Under the existing contracts, FY 19 (7/1/2018 – 6/30/2019) Annual reports are due to DHS on December 2, 2019. Attachment S will be used for new contracts awarded. 
Question 28:

1.2.1 stating certifications must be completed "By the time of 



award", and 1.2.2 states certifications "Provide with Proposal".  



Which is it?
Response:
For an Offeror that has a QRTP certification, the certification must be submitted with the Proposal. If an Offeror is not certified at the time of Proposal submission, the certification must be obtained and submitted at the time the Offeror is recommended for award.
Sang Kang

Procurement Officer

December 2, 2019
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